
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session 
& City Council Meeting  

 
 
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold a work session on Monday, February 4, 
2013, at 12:00 Noon, followed by a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 P.M. The work 
session will be held in Conference Room “A” at City Hall, and the Council meeting will 
be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, 
Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the agenda follows. 
 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an 
interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with 
disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy 
Hawker, City Recorder 541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order 
of the agenda, and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the 
work session and/or meeting. Action items that do not require a public hearing may be 
moved up earlier in the meeting. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

Monday, February 4, 2013 – 12:00 P.M. 
Conference Room A 

 
I. Conceptual framework for workforce housing 
II. Discuss scheduling Council Goal Session  
 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 4, 2013 -- 6:00 P.M. 

Council Chamber 
 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form 
and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to 
the City Council Chamber. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be 
called upon during the Public Comment section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to 
specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City 
Council.  



I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 
III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 

 
IV. Public Comment 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s 
attention any item not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) 
minutes per person with a maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may 
not yield their time to others. 

 
V. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature 
considered under a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the 
consent agenda removed and considered separately on request. 
 
A. Approval of minutes from the Work Session and Regular City Council 

Meeting of January 22, 2013, and joint work session with Fire Districts on  
January 24, 2013. 
(Hawker) 

 
VI. Officer’s Reports  

A. Mayor’s Report 
B. City Manager’s Report 
 i. Project Management Report 

 
VII. Discussion Items and Presentations 

Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, and/or 
discussion of potential future action items. 
 
A. Report & Recommendations from the Port Pedestrian Safety Task Force 
 (Voetberg) 
 

 B. Police – Officer Involved Shooting Protocol 
  (Miranda) 
 
VIII. Public Hearings – 7:00 P.M. 
  

A. Authorization to sell substandard undeveloped property described as a  
  Portion of Gladys Street 
  (Tokos) 

 
 
 
 
 



IX. Action Items 
Citizens will be provided an opportunity to offer comments on action items after 
staff has given their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the 
opportunity to speak. (Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, 
orders, or ordinances.) 
 
A. Intergovernmental Agreement between the State of Oregon & Local 
 Contracting Agency for the Disposal of Surplus Property 
 (Gross) 

 
 B. De-Annexation of a portion of the 668 acre Wolf Tree Destination Resort 
  Property 
  (Tokos) 
 
X. Council Reports and Comments 

 
XI. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 
XII. Adjournment 
 
 







 

  
 

 
CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

169 SW COAST HWY 
 

NEWPORT, OREGON 97365 

 
 

 
phone:  541.574.0629 

 

fax:  541.574.0644 
 

http://newportoregon.gov 

 
 

COAST GUARD CITY, USA 

 
 

mombetsu, japan, sister city 

 

 

Conceptual Framework for Interagency Agreement and 

Contract for Workforce Housing Development 
 

Issues:   
 

(1) City of Newport lacks an adequate supply of affordable workforce housing, as documented in the 

2011 Newport Housing Needs Analysis.  This is attributed to property values consistently 

outpacing increases in median family incomes.  Consequently, it is difficult for workers to find 

housing within the city limits, which negatively influences long term growth of the economy, the 

City’s ability to attract and retain employees and employers, emergency response times by 

emergency personnel living outside the City, and reinvestment in the economy by community 

members who spend more on housing. 
 

(2) The City of Newport is committed to actively participating in the development of workforce 

housing and desires to make available land out of its property inventory as a “land bank” to private 

developers, non-profits, or agencies with the organizational capacity to achieve this objective 

(Goals 1 and 2, Housing Element, Newport Comprehensive Plan).  The LCLT model guarantees 

affordability over the long-term through a land lease arrangement, consistent with the City’s 

policy objectives. 
 

Proposal: 
 

City of Newport to enter into a five (5) year contract with the Lincoln Community Land Trust (LCLT) 

to construct at least six (6) owner-occupied workforce housing units inside the city.  Units are to be 

marketed to individuals or families making between 60 and 120 percent of median family income 

annually
1
.  Properties upon which the units are constructed will be placed into 99 year inheritable and 

renewable land leases to be managed by LCLT or its successor to ensure long term affordability 

within this target income range.   
 

An Intergovernmental Agreement would also be prepared between the City of Newport and 

Community Services Consortium (CSC) to ensure that the trust has sufficient staff resources to carry 

out the terms of the contract and for CSC to serve as a failsafe to guarantee that the lease terms and 

affordability requirements of the LCLT are met in the event that the trust can no longer uphold the 

contract terms. 

 

City of Newport’s Commitments (via contract with LCLT and IGA with CSC) 

 

 Make property available from its land inventory 

 

                                                 
1
 For example, for a family of four persons this equates to a household income range of $33,600 to $67,200. 



 

  
 

 Reserve up to $30,000 of one-time funds to be applied towards site improvements.
2
 

 

 Make available a minimum of $150,000 of revolving loan funds for construction of the units.
2
 

 

 Pay a sum of $10,000 per annum to LCLT for professional services associated with 

performance of contract terms (may be used for general operating expenses or to buy down the 

sales price of homes, at LCLT’s discretion).
 3

 

 

 Allocate staff time to assist LCLT in identifying suitable properties and bringing forward 

preferred sites and plans to the Planning Commission and Council. 

 

Lincoln Community Land Trust Commitments (via contract with Newport) 

 

 Consult with city staff to identify properties suitable for development 

 

 Vet properties and plans with the City of Newport Planning Commission and City Council, 

including development of cost estimates sufficient to demonstrate that the sales price achieves 

affordability 

 

 Perform all necessary due diligence from property selection through design and construction to 

satisfactory completion. 

 

 Provide homebuyer education, including ensuring that a Housing and Urban Development 

(HUD) certified course is completed, income requirements verified, and legal review of lease 

with the buyer is completed. 

 

 Oversee sale of property, including realtor and legal services necessary to complete the 

transactions and transfer the land into 99 year inheritable and renewable land leases. 

 

Community Service Consortium Commitments (via IGA with Newport)  

 

 Provide staff support to LCLT sufficient to ensure that contract terms are satisfied. 

 

 Carryout the lease terms and affordability requirements of the LCLT in the event that the trust 

is no longer able to uphold the terms of the contract between the City of Newport and LCLT. 

 

                                                 
2
 To be funded out of the Housing Fund (Cost Center #4710) where monies from the sale of city owned property were set aside 

for use as a revolving loan to fund the construction of workforce housing.  
3
 The Community Development Department has sufficient funds to cover the initial year of the professional services contract.  

Language would be added to the contract addressing LCLT’s obligations to perform, or lack thereof, should funding not be 

available for future years.  



1    Planning Commission Work Session 1/28/13. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commissioners Present:  Glen Small, Mark Fisher, Rod Croteau, Jim McIntyre, and Gary East. 

 

Planning Commissioners Absent:  Jim Patrick and Bill Branigan (both excused). 

 

Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present:  Suzanne Dalton. 

 

Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent:  Lee Hardy and Bob Berman (both excused). 

 

City Staff Present:  Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos and Executive Assistant Wanda Haney.  

 

In the absence of the Chair, Vice-Chair Small called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m. and turned 

the meeting over to CDD Tokos.     

 

A.  New Business. 

 

1.  Conceptual framework for workforce housing initiative.  Tokos noted that the Commission had put time into the housing 

needs study and recommendations.  One top priority was to put in a land bank where the City would make property available 

for housing for those between 60 and 120 percent of median family annual income.  That was also a City Council goal.  Tokos 

said that what this concept has is a recommendation on how to put that land bank in place.  This is something that has been 

discussed with the Land Trust, the Community Services Consortium, and Lincoln County; and all of them are on board at this 

point.  The City will contract with the Land Trust.  It will be a five-year contract for construction of at least six units.  They 

will be owner-occupied.  The Land Trust model is that once the unit is built, the home is sold to a buyer.  The land is put into a 

99-year renewable lease controlled by the Land Trust.  That program is uniquely suited for the City’s objectives.  If the City is 

giving away property out of our inventory, we want to make sure it will be available for affordable housing.  Tokos noted that 

the Land Trust is relatively young.  He is one of the board members.  There are three units in Lincoln City at this point.  There 

was federal money available for acquisition of properties in distressed areas, and Lincoln City was identified as distressed.  

Those funds are no longer available.  This program would effectively be a contract with the Land Trust.  Because of the Trust’s 

age, there would be a backup intergovernmental agreement with CSC.  CSC covers a three-county area and provides staff 

resources to the Trust.  They would serve if the Trust was no longer able to act as a backup guarantee.  The City would make 

the property available, and the Land Trust would be responsible for putting a house on that.  The City has a revolving fund that 

would be available, which originated from the sale of city-owned property.  This would be an on-going commitment.  The 

language would say if we choose not to fund operating contributions to the Trust what the ramifications are to that.  The Trust 

would put out for bid, and the work would be done by building contractors; and there is a private sector element as well.   

 

Small noted that the City is putting in $10,000, but asked if the other entities also are putting anything into these funds.  Tokos 

said that right now the cities within the County contributed toward general operating expenses.  On projects, the Land Trust is 

putting $9-10 thousand a pop into these houses in terms of staff work.  They would have the choice of either running into the 

sales price or using this money as general operating support.  Tokos noted that this is flexible.  Tokos has looked at the City’s 

inventory to make sure we have enough properties.  He noted that there are a number of sites; some would include site 

preparation work.  Small asked what the process would be for choosing properties.  Tokos said it would be vetted to the 

Planning Commission and the City Council.   

 

McIntyre noted that this concept talks about a 99-year lease and wondered who is going to be making the lease payments.  

Tokos said it would be the home buyer, but the lease would be pretty small at something like $100 a month.  McIntyre asked if 

the cost of the ground is being taken out of the cost of the building to keep the price down, and Tokos confirmed that was the 

case.  McIntyre had a question about who is sharing equity.  Tokos thought that the shared equity concept has more to do with 

the land lease than to the home.  When the home is sold, there are restrictions on how much of an increase they can sell the unit 

for.  They would receive full benefit from the proceeds of the sale of the house.  The owner gets all equity in the house.  

McIntyre noted that the lender usually shares a portion of equity as payment for taking a risk of holding the contract.  Tokos 

said he can get additional details on how that works.   

 

Fisher asked about the SDCs, and Tokos said that we have no capacity to waive that.   

 

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Work Session 

Newport City Hall Conference Room ‘A’ 

Monday, January 28, 2013 

 



2    Planning Commission Work Session 1/28/13. 

Dalton asked about the timeline.  Tokos said there would be six units over a 5-year period.  They hope to have the agreement in 

place over the next couple of months.  The Trust serves the entire county.  They are trying to get one in Toledo.  There should 

be an average of one unit every ten months.   

 

East mentioned he Aqua Vista development in Yachats that is similar to this.  Tokos said that was under a planned 

development, and the Trust didn’t want to tackle that at this point.   

 

Tokos noted that these homes are for anybody in the community that falls within the 60-120% median family income.  By 

itself, this is not enough homes to support the needs of Newport.   

 

Croteau said that assumed the Trust already has selection procedures in place for the dwelling.  He wondered if the price is 

going to be set or competitive for a group of people.  Tokos said the price will be set depending on the parcel and how it is 

developed.  That will be brought forward to the Council.  The price will be set when the Trust goes out looking for a 

contractor.  Croteau noted that this is restricted to median income for qualified buyers, but wondered if it is like any other real 

estate financing; first come first served.  Tokos said that buyers go through a home-buyer educational course.  Income 

requirements are verified.  There is legal review of the lease with the buyer.  The Trust is responsible for overseeing the sale of 

the property.  He noted that the Trust is to the point of having three properties under development and have a pretty good 

model going.  They also borrow from a large land trust in the Portland area.   

 

Small wondered, after a house is built and the initial owner decides to sell, how we make sure the next purchased falls under 

those qualifications.  Tokos said he believes that is in the purchase agreement initially.  He can bring back additional 

information on that in terms of future buyers.  Fisher said that part of it would be that how much they can sell for will dictate 

keeping it in this income level.  Small said that this house would be sold below market value, and who wouldn’t like to buy at 

that level.  He said there should be something saying that future buyers have to have income within those marks.  McIntyre 

agreed that the framework will have to guarantee that.  Tokos said those guarantees are in place, and he will have to bring that 

to the Commission.   

 

East said that in the past, the Commission has talked about City fees and prorating to the size of the house on a square footage 

basis to control costs.  He wondered if we could talk about that again.  Fisher noted that SDCs are expensive right now.  Tokos 

said that SDCs for a single-family home are $10,600 now; but that is not the total development cost.  It is about $17,000-

$18,000 when looking at a water meter, the school construction excise tax, etc.  The capital projects SDCs are intended to fund 

are expensive too.  Croteau said it sounds like something the City should do. 

 

Tokos said he will bring back details in terms of how the sales agreement works for buyers and what exactly guarantees future 

buyers will be in that 60-120% median so the City’s objectives are guaranteed to go forward in years to come.  

 

Small said he could image a great waiting list of potential buyers and wondered how they will be qualified.  McIntyre said 

there would have to be some restrictions to prevent people from speculating and turning around and renting the houses.  Small 

noted that it is owner-occupied.  Fisher said that HUD essentially requires the owner to live there a year.  Tokos said the 

Trust’s has experience to date with one sold unit, one on the market, and one almost finished.  They haven’t had huge lists.  It 

could be lack of familiarity.  It’s not a conventional sale.  They can’t sell at market rate.  They don’t own the land; they own 

only the house.  They are restricted on the resale. That does away with speculation.  Those within the 60-120 MFI can’t afford 

anything else.  This is the only way they can get a house of that size in that type of price range.  East wondered if there would 

be a certain square footage or number of bedrooms requirement.  Tokos said that is why he left it as units.  Depending on the 

properties, they might be more suitable for duplexes.  McIntyre asked if they could be condominiums, and Tokos said 

potentially; but not likely.  Based on what we have in inventory, they will be more single-family or duplex type development.  

McIntyre wondered how you establish ownership on a duplex, and Tokos said common wall.  Fisher said they would be more 

of a townhouse.  Tokos said they would have to being those proposals before the Planning Commission.  McIntyre asked if 

they open bids to builders, and Tokos confirmed that. 

 

Dalton said that she is imagining lessons could be learned from other communities and is imagining connecting with them.  

She asked that as things come up, if Tokos will alert the Commission to those things.   

 

Tokos said that the way this arrangement is set up, the Planning Commission and City Council review proposals brought 

forward by the Trust consistent with the housing agenda.  Goals were put in place in terms of long term affordability.  McIntyre 

wondered who would be vetting the builders and their proposals, and Tokos said that would be the Trust.  McIntyre wondered 

if the Trust would develop a list of approved contractors.  Tokos said they have to be licensed; other than that, it’s a 

competitive bidding process.  Fisher wondered why individuals couldn’t do the construction themselves.  Tokos said having 

the Trust overseeing the construction is a way to insure the final sales price is consistent with the targeted range of 60-120 

MFI.  The Trust has to be very selective on what select hit that price range.  Someone building to suit might go with custom 



3    Planning Commission Work Session 1/28/13. 

cabinets that don’t fit within the price range.  The Trust has the land long term and is involved and has the relationships to 

make sure contractors are using long-term products. 

 

Small wondered if the Trust selects the floor plans; and Tokos confirmed that they do.  The buyers come in when the house is 

finished.  They get a finished product.   Small asked if contractors are building an established set of plans.  Tokos said there 

may be some flexibility in floor plans submitted.  East agreed it has to be flexible.  He said construction costs will influence the 

cost of the house and the size.  There has to be a lot of flexibility until they have done it long enough that they know a certain 

square foot set of plans will meet that price range.  McIntyre said he thought the Trust staff will be looking at plans and sees 

the type of house they can build and then get bids on that once a house is designed; then builders build to that design.  Tokos 

said it is the role of the Trust staff to have enough detail that they are comfortable it will work on that site. 

 

Croteau wondered who would manage the revolving fund.  Tokos said they would make that request to the City Council.  Then 

it is paid back on the sale of the house. 

 

Small noted that this mentions employee families, but he asked what about the retired or the disabled.  He wondered if there 

was a definition of workforce housing.  Tokos said that he didn’t know if we pinned that down that tight in the City’s policies.  

He said that to the extent we define that, we want to e consistent with what we did in the policies.  He can take a look at that.  

Fisher wondered if it had to be the gainfully employed.  The disabled would qualify but are not in the workforce.  Tokos said 

that he doesn’t recall defining workforce, but just targeting it at the 60-120% MFI.   

 

Tokos said that he can bring some additional information about shared equity, how this plays out for future buyers, and if this 

is for anybody or more targeted to the workforce.  Tokos asked, and the Commissioners said that they think that the framework 

looks okay.              

                           

2.  Summary Building/Land Use Activity (2012).  Tokos had provided an overview of what was done in the last year and 

where things stand.  At the next meeting, he would like to do an update of the actual work program as we did in the past so that 

we can have goals conversation.  The City Council will set goals later in February.  Tokos noted that in terms of permit traffic, 

building permits were up a little over last year.  Electric permits were up considerably.  Plumbing permits were down.  

Construction value was down.  Land use actions were on par.  The increase in land use fees were still going through the 4-year 

phase in, so that is why they were quite a bit higher.  The memo includes charts showing land use reviews and building permits 

over the last 10 years.  2008 and 2009 were tough on building; and 2012 was not so bad.  Land use reviews were on the lower 

end.  There were fourteen single-family dwelling permits in each of the last two years, which is relatively modest.  There were 

a fair amount of industrial construction; with research and institutional; with NOAA, Aquarium Science, Port of Newport; and 

LCSD.  Commercial construction has been pretty steady with renovations; with the bigger ones being Walmart, and Fred 

Meyer.  Commercial looks like it will continue.  Walgreens went out last year in December.  Safeway will e doing a 

renovation.  They are looking to start construction toward the end of March.  They are locked in a lease and are confined to the 

existing footprint.   

 

Dalton noted that sometimes Safeway and Fred Meyer do gas stations, but not in Newport.  Tokos noted that Fred Meyers tried 

to find a location.  It is just a lack of sites.  Safeway hasn’t talked to the City yet.  Tokos noted that Umpqua Bank is planning 

to submit plans to rebuild where the bank burned down.  They anticipate having plans in February.  O’Reilly Auto Parts 

already submitted plans are in review.  They are waiting for the structural fill next door to be done first.  Small wondered if any 

of these would lead to something coming before the Planning Commission.  Tokos said these are all pretty straight-forward 

unless there is something like an exception or adjustment to parking or structure height.  Tokos noted that the Teevin Brothers 

Log Yard is moving forward, which is one of the largest industrial developments we’ve seen in a long time.  Residential will 

probably remain pretty steady as it has been.   

 

Tokos noted that the Teevin development is controversial.  There are folks that either want to see it or those that don’t.  Fisher 

noted that their operation is an outright use for that facility.  He said that when he was on the Port Commission, there was a log 

yard there.  Because the port doc went upside down, they left; and it hasn’t been used for a while.  Tokos noted that Teevin will 

be subject to a DEQ permit.  They have a $300,000 investment in a storm drainage system to deal with that.  He said that 

everything associated with their project is located upland; there is nothing in the Bay.  Tokos talked about the debarking 

operation.  He said it is noisy, but will be set back and will adhere to the noise ordinances.  Tokos said that Teevin has their 

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) in with the City.  We are requesting additional information.  It is in the public comment period, 

and he is getting lots of letters; but a lot have nothing to do with the criteria.  He said there is a very high chance that the 

Planning Commission will see an appeal on this.  He received a request for appeal forms before this even hit the streets.  The 

Commission may have multiple TIAs to look at.  Fisher talked about the log operation that was there before. 

 

Fisher asked about the sign code amendments that the Commission went through and passed on to the Council.  He wondered 

in the end how much different the ordinance was than what the Commission came up with.  Tokos said not materially different.  



4    Planning Commission Work Session 1/28/13. 

There was a big debate by the Council whether to consider it at all, whether electronic message signs make sense, and dealing 

with sign massing along the highway.  The majority thought it was fine.  There was just some cleanup.   

 

Tokos went over the legislative items shown on the back of his memo.  He said that it was a pretty productive year in terms of 

legislative actions.  We wrapped up things that had been in process for multiple years; like the TSP, of which the County is still 

working on their piece.  That had been some 5-6 years in the works.  The VRD and BB update is complete and is being 

implemented.  Most units have been inspected.  There have been a lot of corrections in terms of people addressing safety 

issues.  That was positive.  Tokos said we have 85 or so endorsement applications.  The companies associated with rentals are 

all tuned in with it.  The Economic Opportunity Analysis was finished on phase 1.  We are working with the TAC on wrapping 

up the recommendation for the upcoming budget for the business recruitment/retention position.  The Tree City ordinance was 

accomplished.  The Parks Department submitted the application.  Coho/Brant was completed and was rolled into the submittal 

to ODOT for the STIP project that involves the intersection at 35
th

 and cleanup of Ferry Slip.  Tokos said it looks like we will 

get that funding from ODOT to help with the Urban Renewal funds.  $1.5 million came out of Urban Renewal.  The 

modification of the zoning ordinance that we have been working on for years was finally taken care of.   

 

Tokos noted that ongoing legislative initiatives include the amendments that the Planning Commission will consider tonight in 

regular session to clean up the rules for UGB expansion.  Then there will be the UGB expansion itself.  The city-wide erosion 

control has gone slowly.  Tokos is not sure we have the capacity in the building department to implement that.  He said that 

stormwater could go in sync with that.  He said it is still a priority.   

 

Tokos said issues for the coming year include annexation strategy for South Beach industrial areas, concepts for formation of a 

north-side Urban Renewal Area district that will probably be budgeted by the City Council in the upcoming year and with 

which the Planning Commission will have to get involved.  There is the scheduled review of the Nye Beach Design Review 

Overlay.  Assuming that the UGB expansion goes through, it will have to be annexed.  The City Center is working on design 

guidelines.  Tokos noted that the City just met with ODOT on the 25
th

 to talk about bridge replacement.  He said that 

discussion is just getting started; but the fact that they are on board to talk about it is a big deal.  As mentioned in work session, 

we still have the park model issue out there.  Development of standards for stormwater runoff is still out there as well.  Tokos 

said that the Territorial Sea Plan may come up.  He noted that plan amendments were approved by LCDC authorizing offshore 

development.  It was a little more generous to the wave industry than the advisory committee wanted.  But for Newport, 

because we secured the grid-connected test facility and have the non-grid-connected test facility, it doesn’t look like we will 

see commercial deployment within the territorial seas (3 miles out).                              

                               

B.  Adjournment.  Having no further discussion, the work session meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________  

Wanda Haney 

Executive Assistant  







01/01/12 
 
 

Lincoln Community Land Trust 
 

2012 Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Name Prof./Interest Area Company/Affil. Email 
Bill Hall, Chair Lincoln County 

Commissioner/ Housing 
Advocate 

Lincoln County bhall@co.lincoln.or.us 

Curt Abbott, 
Vice Chair 

Director, CLPUD/ 
Housing Advocate 

Central Lincoln 
People’s Utility 
District  

cabbott@peak.org 

Alison 
Robertson, 
Secretary 

Assistant Director, 
Urban Renewal/ Urban 
Planning 

City of Lincoln 
City 

alisonn@lincolncity.org 

Ron Tierney, 
Treasurer 

Housing/Finance City of Lincoln 
City 

ront@lincolncity.org 

Sally Bovett Director, Habitat for 
Humanity  

Lincoln County 
HFH 

sbovett@habitatlincoln.org 

Michelle 
Amberg 

City Manager/Workforce 
Housing Advocate 

City of Toledo manager@cityoftoledo.org 

Max Glenn Consultant/Housing 
Advocate 

Yachats 
Workforce 
Housing 
Committee 

m35glenn@peak.org 

Derrick Tokos Director, Community 
Development  

City of Newport  d.tokos@newportoregon.gov 

Position Vacant  General Representative   
 
 



1

Derrick Tokos

From: Benjamin Baggett [bbaggett@communityservices.us]
Sent: Friday, January 25, 2013 11:18 AM
To: Derrick Tokos
Subject: LCLT Background info.
Attachments: Capacity-Building Request Ltr to Business 2011.doc

Derrick, 
 
The mission of the Lincoln Community Land Trust (LCLT) is to provide permanently affordable 
homeownership for working individuals and families in Lincoln County.  LCLT, established in 2008, is a 
501(c)(3) community led, member‐based organization. The organization was created from an action item in At 
Home in Lincoln County: A Ten‐Year Housing Plan for Lincoln County, a report made possible by The Lincoln 
County Government and the regional community action agency.  An all‐volunteer organizing committee met 
in September, 2007 and formed the organization.  Today members and an all‐volunteer board direct the 
organization and one part‐time staff person.   
 
The goals of the Lincoln Community Land Trust 

1. To build or renovate homes in Lincoln County for sale at prices that will remain affordable to working individuals 
and families with low and moderate incomes. 

2. To use public and private resources responsibly to bring home prices within reach for working individuals and 
families. 

3. To restrict the resale price of LCLT homes in order to ensure they remain affordable for future buyers.  
4. To provide homes that are characterized by quality, attractiveness, and sustainability in development and 

operation so they are considered an asset by all communities within Lincoln County 
 
Attached is a capacity building request letter that is a good summary of the work of LCLT. 
Since this letter LCLT has grown a bit as we now have two additional homes. 
I can provide more information about those homes or other if you like. 
 
Good luck on your presentation, if you need me to be there let me know. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ben 
 
 
Ben Baggett, Director 
Lincoln Community Land Trust 
www.lincolnclt.org 
545 SW 2nd St., Suite A 
Corvallis, OR 97333 
541‐758‐2761 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

July 29th, 2011 

 

 

Name 

Title, Business Name 

Address 

City, State Zip 

 

 

Dear __________: 

 

The Lincoln Community Land Trust (LCLT) is seeking $______________ capacity-building support from 

________________ to facilitate the development of affordable workforce housing in Lincoln County. See 

our 2010 Annual Report online at www.lincolnclt.org for more information about our progress. Also, we 

look forward to unveiling our Lincoln County wide Workforce Housing Needs Assessment in September. 

Your contributions will help cover the expenses of the special event. You will receive an invitation and 

special recognition of your contribution at the event. See attached giving levels details. We are also in the 

midst of selling our first home and constructing our second on the adjacent lot. Our goal is to create a 

green, energy efficient home that remains affordable to those who deserve it.  You may specify how you 

would like your contribution to be used, construction fund or general operating support.   

 

And now a little background about our work and the need for workforce housing in Lincoln County: 

 

Problem: Lack of Affordable Homes for our Local Workforce 

Increasingly, the workforce in Lincoln County is struggling to secure affordable housing.  Home prices 

have far surpassed wage growth over the past two decades leaving few affordable housing opportunities. 

Lincoln County businesses are feeling the impacts of this and share concerns about employee 

recruitment, retention, satisfaction, and productivity; all which continue to affect the bottom line for our 

local businesses. 

 

Solution: Lincoln Community Land Trust  

The Lincoln Community Land Trust (LCLT), a registered 501 (c)(3) tax-exempt organization, works to 

provide permanently affordable homeownership opportunities to working families and individuals across 

Lincoln County.  LCLT makes homes permanently affordable by selling the home and leasing the land in 

a 99 year lease.  Permanently affordable homes can be a natural step between renting and full market 

homeownership by keeping housing costs low while building equity.  

 

Opportunity: Local Business Partnership with LCLT 

Businesses benefit from the LCLT’s success. LCLT creates new affordable homeownership opportunities, 

provides stability from the housing market, gives additional protection to homeowner’s investment, 

delivers HUD approved homeownership counseling and support, and gives employees affordable housing 

options close to work.   

 

Capacity building support contributions give LCLT part-time staffing, legal and accounting support, public 

outreach materials, resources, and training resulting in project development, community outreach, and 

organizational development. 

 

http://www.lincolnclt.org/


 

Members of the LCLT Board of Directors would like to review this request with you and answer questions 

at your convenience. Feel free to contact me at (541) 758-2761 or bbaggett@communityservices.us. 

Contributions may be sent to the address below. Checks can be made to LCLT. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Benjamin Baggett, Director 

Lincoln Community Land Trust 

545 SW 2
nd

 Street, Suite A 

Corvallis, OR 97333 

www.lincolnclt.org 
Attachment 1 

Community Land Trusts 
 
Community Land Trusts (CLTs) are primarily focused on providing ownership housing that is affordable to 
people with modest incomes.  One of the unique features of CLTs is that they are equally concerned with 
housing affordability today as well as in the future. 
 
CLTs typically have the following goals

2
: 

 
o Remove land as a commodity so it’s no longer subject to market pressures. 
o Make homes affordable to families who can’t yet or will not be able to afford market-rate housing. 
o Offer families the opportunity to create stability and wealth. 
o Attempt to balance the interests of communities with the interests of individuals. 
o Ensure a stock of affordable homes. 
o Help create and maintain balanced communities that contain income-diverse neighborhoods. 
o Prevent displacement of households with low and moderate incomes as neighborhoods convert 

to seasonal rentals. 
 
CLTs typically have the following characteristics: 
 

o Nonprofit, Tax-exempt Corporation. Some CLTs are stand-alone 501(c)(3) corporations, and 
others exist as a program area housed within another nonprofit corporation. 
 

o Dual Ownership. Typically, the CLT owns the land, and an individual or family owns the house. 
In some cases, where land ownership by the CLT is not feasible or desirable (such as in a mixed-
income condominium), the CLT retains an ownership interest in the property in order to enforce 
the resale restriction that maintains housing affordability. 
 

o Leased Land.  A 99-year, renewable, inheritable lease gives the homeowner full rights to use of 
the land and protects the interests of the homeowner, the land trust and the lender that financed 
the deal. In condominiums, CLTs may use perpetual deed covenants that contain the same 
provisions, rights and restrictions as the land lease. 
 

o Perpetual Affordability.  A resale formula in the legal documents gives homeowners a fair return 
on their investment while giving future homebuyers fair access to homes at an affordable price. 

 
o Perpetual Responsibility.  The CLT has an ongoing interest in what happens to the homes on 

its land – and to the people who live in them.   
 

o Place-based Membership.  A CLT is beholden to the residents of the “community” it serves. 
 

o Community Control.  CLT members nominate, elect and may serve on the Board of Directors. 
 

mailto:bbaggett@communityservices.us


 

There are 245 CLTs across the United States in almost every state.  There are 9 CLTs or organizations 
using the CLT model operating or preparing to operate in Oregon. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________ 
 
2
 Adapted from ”What is a Community Land Trust?” produced by the Northwest Community Land Trust Coalition. 



 

  

Attachment 3 
Market Analysis 

 
Population. Between 2000 and 2008, the population in Lincoln County grew at a modest pace 
compared with the overall growth of the Oregon population3. 
 

Geography 
1990 

Census 
2000 

Census 
2008 

PSU Estimate 
2000-2008 

Growth 

Depoe Bay 870 1,174 1,405 19.68% 

Lincoln City 5,903 7,437 7,875 5.89% 

Newport 8,437 9,532 10,580 10.99% 

Siletz 992 1,133 1,190 5.03% 

Toledo 3,174 3,472 3,610 3.97% 

Waldport 1,595 2,050 2,145 4.63% 

Yachats 533 617 780 26.42% 

Unincorporated 17,385 19,064 17,130 -10.14% 

       
Lincoln 
County 38,889 44,479 44,715 0.53% 

       

Oregon 2,842,321 3,421,399 3,791,075 10.80% 

 
That trend is anticipated to continue: Oregon population growth is expected to outpace Lincoln 
County growth well into the future4. 
 
Seasonal demand. These data do not reflect recent trends that have created a significant 
seasonal population.  First, Lincoln County has a very high percentage of homes owned by 
people claiming residence outside the County.  These second homes comprise 37% of the total 
stock of ownership housing5.  Second, Lincoln County’s economy has moved away from fishing, 
forestry, and farming toward tourism and recreation.  This shift brings visitors and employment 
to support the visitors in the warmer months of each year. 
 
For-sale home prices. Seasonal demand for housing and the shift toward tourism have 
increase demand for Lincoln County housing generally and for ownership housing specifically.  
This contributes to accelerating growth in the median sales price of homes5, which more than 
doubled from 1990 to 2000 and have roughly doubled again since then. 
 

Median Sales Price 1990 2000 2007 
2000-2007 

Change 

Bare Land (Non-View) $14,500 $35,000 $76,500 118.57% 

       
Improved Property (Non-
View) $54,000 $111,750 $248,000 121.92% 

       

All Housing Units $59,500 $130,000 $257,750 98.27% 

 
_______________ 
 
3
 Portland State University Population Estimates 

4
 Oregon Office of Economic Analysis Long-Term County Forecast 



 

5
 Lincoln County Assessor 

Effects on income. The shift in Lincoln County’s economy from commodities to tourism has 
also had a depressing effect on wages.  Wages in Lincoln County have grown about 3% each 
year since 20006. 
 

Covered Employment 1990 2000 2007 
2000-2007 

Change 

     

Average Pay – All Industries $16,757 $23,226 $28,359 22.10% 

     

 
The number of Lincoln County residents in poverty has grown by almost 40% between 2000 
and 2005 (most recent data available)7.  Lincoln County is listed as a “Distressed County” for 
2007 taking into consideration a number of factors including employment change, average wage 
change, annual unemployment compared with Oregon, and per capita personal income 
compared with Oregon8. 
 
The housing market in Lincoln County is becoming increasingly unaffordable to the local 
workforce.  The following chart shows a widening gap between growth in income and growth in 
housing sales price particularly before 1997 and after 2003. 
 

 
 
 
 

_______________ 
 
6
 Oregon Employment Department, Average Pay for All Industries 



 

7
 US Census Bureau, Small Area Income & Poverty Estimates, All Ages in Poverty 

8
 Oregon Economic and Community Development Department 

Specific examples of the effects of this widening gap include the following: 
 

o Samaritan North Lincoln Hospital in Lincoln City has nurses commuting from McMinnville 
due to the lack of good affordable housing in Lincoln City. 

o The Lincoln County School District hired 35 new teachers one summer and five of them 
resigned their contracts and took jobs elsewhere before school started. In all five cases, 
they cited housing prices as the reason. 

o Lincoln County recruited for a top managerial position in the county and lost a candidate 
because of housing prices. The salary was comparable to what the candidate was 
earning in a similar position in the Midwest, but the differential in housing prices made it 
impossible to consider the move. 

o A new business in Lincoln City had to delay its opening. It had hired six employees, all 
from out of the area, and three of the six decided not to accept the positions at the last 
minute. All three cited housing prices as the reason 

 
These people, and many other workers like them, represent the market for LCLT homes.  
Accessing the market will require specific outreach to residents with low and moderate incomes, 
employers, and community housing partners in Lincoln County.  It requires the LCLT remain 
visible those already living in the community through public presentations and to those 
considering becoming a part of the community through a website.  The LCLT will also continue 
participation on the County-sponsored Workforce Housing Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Attachment 4 
Shared Equity Homeownership 

 
The following article is published by NCB Capital Impact.  NCB Capital Impact “is a 
national non-profit organization that creates access to capital and expert technical 
assistance otherwise unavailable for low- and moderate-income communities.”  
Community land trusts are one form of shared equity homeownership.  This article 
provides some background on the importance of having community land trusts as one 
strategy to address affordable workforce housing. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 



 

 
 











CITY OF NEWPORT 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS 

FISCAL YEAR 2012/2013 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Strengthen volunteer and paid staff relationships 
B. Volunteer Recruitment 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Reconfiguration of main station 
B. Develop a comprehensive Fire Inspection Program 
C. Consider and/or Update Comprehensive Plan 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Implement recommendations from ESCI 
B. Develop a strategic plan 
 
5+ Year Goals 
 
A. Implement strategic plan 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Maintain volunteer force 
B. Continue to support education and crime prevention 
C. Evaluate and monitor staffing levels 
D. Conduct annual public surveys 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Update Comprehensive Plan 
B. Develop and implement a policy review schedule 
C. Develop a technology and equipment replacement schedule 
D. Participate in LINT as staffing allows 
E. Develop a strategy to achieve 100% FTE levels at all times 
F. Develop a resource and partnership to reinstate a school resource officer  
 
 



 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Add school resource officer 
 
5+ Year Goals 
 
A. Become accredited with the Oregon Accreditation Alliance (OAA) 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Education and public outreach and designation of October as Emergency 
 Preparedness Month 
B. Maintain Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) program 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Transition to an updated 911 system 
B. Develop Tsunami alerts and evacuation routes and sites 
C. Evaluate public facilities for earthquake readiness 
D. Form an Emergency Preparedness Committee – staff level and include ICS training 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Implement plan to upgrade structures for earthquake readiness 
B. Become a NOAA TsunamiReady City 
C. Develop a plan and implement stockpiles for emergency preparedness 
 

AIRPORT 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Comply with FAA Part 139 regulations by continuing to develop staff by cross-
 training in all aspects of airport operations 
B. Maintain and develop operational and maintenance core guiding plans for field 
 operations 
C. Continue to explore management options for the FBO 
D. Continue to develop and implement Airport Improvement Projects (AIP) 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Complete operational and maintenance plans for field operations 
B. Continue advanced training of operational staff 
C. Develop a plan to offer services of a full-service FBO 
 



 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Develop the FBO to a level that it becomes profitable and attractive to independent 
 operations 
B. Continue to develop and support a volunteer association to support and promote 
 ONP 
C. Continue to develop airport business opportunities including infrastructure upgrades 
 

LIBRARY 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Ensure the safety of library users and staff and minimize risk 
B. Pursue improvements to keep the library current 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Conduct an electrical and energy inspection and implement a plan to update heating 
 and lighting systems 
B. Increase funding for collection development 
C. Develop an equipment and furnishings maintenance and replacement plan 
D. Install security cameras and improved lighting 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Plan for library expansion/relocation study 
B. Implement the Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) security system 
 
5+ Year Goals 
 
A. Expand or relocate the library 
 

FINANCE AND BUDGETING 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Develop and produce award-winning audits and budgets 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Install and make operational a purchase requisition/purchase order system 
B. Implement the new accounting system – Cassell 
 
 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 



 
A. Focus on reorganization of administrative duties in relation to finance and 
 administration activities 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Provide recreational programming and opportunities 
B. Maintain and continue to update programs and equipment 
C. Appoint and maintain the operation of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Form and Parks and Recreation Foundation 
B. Implement an “Adopt-a-Park” and an “Adopt-a-Streetscape” program 
C. Develop a schedule and implementation plan for equipment and facilities repair and 
 replacement 
D. Review the existing Comprehensive Plan with the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
 Committee and staff and report the findings to the City Council 
E. Update the CIP 
F. Create a cost recovery program and define subsidy levels 
G. Remodel and update the control desk, circuit room, and gym lights 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Address the issue of replacing the aquatic facility (municipal pool) 
B. Consider an update to the Parks and Open Space Master Plan 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Maintain and implement economic development strategies 
B. Involve citizens in every aspect of planning 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Work with the City Center Newport Association to develop a renewal plan 
B. Finalize the EOA and Economic Development Plan 
C. Address annexation and land supply issues 
D. Annex and zone city’s water reservoir 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Implement measures from the EOA and the Economic Development Plan 
B. Develop strategies for annexing property in the Urban Growth Boundary 



 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Involve citizens in every aspect of planning 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Organize city records to handle leases, franchises, and easements 
B. Automate addressing and inspection records 
C. Develop incentives and regulatory changes to facilitate development of work force 
 housing and develop a land bank 
D. Achieve “Tree City USA” designation 
E. Develop an open space policy and plan 
F. Adopt a city-wide erosion control code 
G. Work toward the Adoption of a Common Design Theme for South Beach 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Adopt recommendations related to the handling of/or treatment of storm runoff 
 associated with new development 
B. Coordinate with the state and FEMA on flood plain and wetland regulations 
C. Develop a plan for handling city building inspection services 
D. Develop strategies for property acquisitions, sales, and other city assets 
E. Develop a plan for the inclusion of park models 
F. Adopt and Begin Implementing a Common Design Theme for South Beach 
 

WATER 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Update the Water System Master Plan and the Comprehensive Plan 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Consider construction of the new Agate Beach water tank 
B. Switch out water meters to “radio reads” 
C. Begin the systematic replacement of water supply lines and develop plans for future 
 replacement 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Develop a watershed management plan 
B. Develop a water conservation plan and review the distribution system 
C. Implement automatic meter reading system 
D. Extend water system to the airport 



 
5+ Year Goals 
 
A. Plan for future raw water supply 
 

WASTEWATER 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Update and maintain mapping of systems (water, stormwater, and wastewater) 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Start, or continue with, initial inventory and mapping of systems 
B. Plan for bonding issues to provide for big project funding 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Develop wastewater plans for service to the airport 
B. Develop a Wastewater Master Plan 
C. Identify and reduce inflow, infiltration, and pollution 
D. Upgrade sewer pump stations in the north end 
E. Plan for funding of major reconstruction of wastewater systems 
 

STORMWATER 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Update and maintain mapping of systems 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Participate in Emergency Response Committee planning process 
B. Consider implementation of stormwater fee 
C. Continue with initial inventory and mapping of systems 
D. Plan for funding of major construction/repair of system 
E. Continue to identify cross-connections and pollution sources 
F. Plan for NPDES requirements 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Develop Stormwater Master Plan 
 
5+ Year Goals 
 
A. Plan for funding of major construction project 

STREETS AND TRANSPORTATION 



 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Continue to support the Lincoln County Transit District and the shuttle program 
B. Continue with the wayfinding project 
 
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Goals 
 
A. Designate and develop pedestrian and bicycle routes in association with streets 
B. Designate and develop gravel streets for paving, and develop a paving inventory 
 and replacement program 
 
1 – 5 Year Goals 
 
A. Develop a system to support electric/alternative fuel vehicles 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Continue utilizing employee surveys 
B. Continue to support the City Employee Committee 
C. Provide communication management training to supervisors and the management 
 team 
 

SUSTAINABILITY 
 
Ongoing Goals 
 
A. Every city department will look at ways of conserving resources 
 
 

















































































January 22, 2013 
6:03 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 

 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Beemer, Allen, Roumagoux, Sawyer, 
Saelens, Busby, and Swanson were present. 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Finance Director Marshall, Library Director Smith, Parks 
and Recreation Director Protiva, Fire Chief Paige, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 Allen noted that a date needed to be set for a joint meeting, and public hearing, with 
the Port to hear comments regarding the proposed Teevin Brothers log exporting 
business. Voetberg reported that the Task Force will make a presentation to Council on 
February 4, and the hearing should be scheduled after that date. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 Ronald Halverson addressed the proposed Teevin Brothers log exporting operation 
noting that it would create family wage jobs in the community potentially allowing some 
of the homeless population to find housing. He urged Council support of the proposal. 
 Allen Newell, representing the rental pool at The Landing, reported that rental pool 
members are disturbed by the proposal to bring logging trucks adjacent to The Landing, 
noting that it would cause major negative impacts to their rental business. 
 Yale Fogarty spoke in support of the proposed Teevin Brothers log yard. He reported 
that there are no pollutants (creosote or chemicals) created by the debarking process. 
He added that the speed limit on SE Moore Drive and Bay Boulevard is 25 miles per 
hour; and contemporary log trucks are quieter with cleaning burning fuel. He added that 
the operation would benefit the international terminal; and create family wage jobs. He 
noted that the majority of investments along the proposed route were built during the 
peak of a previous log shipping operation. He summarized by noting that the benefits of 
this operation will be huge and the impact minimal. 
 Sawyer stated that the street is actually SE Moore Drive. 
 Mike Peterson questioned statistics presented by Ronald Halverson. He stated that 
there are ten longshoremen who live in Newport who would realize jobs from the log 
exporting operation, and others would be commuters. He stated that he is a homeowner 
on the route and is not inclined to donate his home for the cause. He added that the 
trucks should have decibel testing. He stated that he hears jake brakes on SE Moore 



Drive on a daily basis. He asked Council to choose between a few jobs and the loss of 
property value of homes in the area. 
 Allen reported that the Task Force is addressing issues and encouraged the 
audience to attend the City Council meeting on February 4, 2013, at 6 P.M. 
 Jackie Trahan distributed a letter to Council. She stated that she chose to move to 
Newport because of the quality of life, and expressed opposition to the Teevin Brothers 
proposal. 
 Peggy Sabanskas stated that she has lived in the area for 34 years, and was here 
during the previous logging operation. She noted that it was a great thing that created 
jobs in Lincoln County. She reported that SE Moore Drive was built by the Port for 
logging, and that it was constructed to higher standards to accommodate logging trucks. 
She added that she does not believe the operation will negatively impact home values in 
the area, and supports the proposal. 
 Katherine Howard suggested that the logs should be milled here rather than in Asia, 
adding that shipping raw logs is wrong. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of minutes from the City Council work session and regular meeting of 

 January 7, 2013; 
 B. Report of accounts paid for December 2012. 
 
 MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Saelens, to approve the consent 
calendar with the corrections to the minutes as noted by Allen. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 Mayor’s Report. Roumagoux reported that she met with Dave Price, the new Director 
of the Small Business Development Center at OCCC, on January 9. He is replacing Guy 
Faust who has retired. 
 Roumagoux attended the Police Department’s management meeting at the Boone 
Center on January 2. Miranda requested that Council sign up for police ride-alongs. She 
reported that she rode with Sergeant Real and it was quite informative. 
 Roumagoux reported that she gave the welcoming address to the Central 
Coast/Willamette Valley Lions meeting on January 19. 
 Roumagoux reported that she has been invited to the City Employee Committee 
meeting on February 12. 
 Roumagoux reported that she was a guest on the Chamber of Commerce news 
radio program on January 21. 
 Roumagoux reported that she met with the hospital board regarding the new health 
education building. She anticipates a presentation to Council will be forthcoming. 
 Roumagoux reported that she recently met with Representative Gomberg, Senator 
Roblan, and Senator Merkeley, with whom she discussed city issues.  



Roumagoux appointed Autumn Belloni and Debora Chandler to the Library Board, 
and Neal Henning to the Destination Newport Committee. MOTION was made by Allen, 
seconded by Beemer, to ratify the Mayor’s appointments. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Voetberg reported that the updated 
suggestion/concern/complaint report is in the packet along with departmental reports. 
He noted that a draft overdue library letter (a last resort letter) is also included in the 
packet. 
 Allen asked that staff issue a press release regarding the ability to comment, and the 
comment period, for the Traffic Impact Analysis produced for the proposed Teevin 
Brothers project.  
 Sawyer asked how many satellite phones the city has, and which departments have 
them. 
 Sawyer asked when the OSU Extension Office will be moving to the Bayfront. 
 Sawyer complimented LINT for eradicating an issue near a public school. 
 Sawyer noted that a piece of the Japanese dock that washed ashore at Agate Beach 
after the Japanese tsunami is coming back to Newport. He thanked everyone who 
worked on this issue. 
 Voetberg reported that City Day at the Capitol is February 27, and to let staff know if 
anyone is interested in attending. 
 Voetberg reported that the tsunami dock will be returning to Newport tomorrow 
morning, and that it will be placed at the Hatfield Marine Science Center. 
 Voetberg reported that Marshall has developed a first draft of the business license 
administrative rules, and hopes to have a more refined draft by February 18. He added 
that Marshall will try to address any big issues. 
 Voetberg reported that an ad hoc wayfinding group has been meeting for years, and 
that while most of the wayfinding plan is in place, there will be ongoing issues. He asked 
whether Council was interested in formalizing the committee, and if so, staff will develop 
the general duties and scope of the committee and return to Council for action. Council 
concurred and staff agreed to develop the framework for the committee and bring it back 
to Council. 
 Allen asked whether the administrative rules for business licensing were being 
vetted through the City Attorney, and if so, would there be something more formal to 
review on February 18. He added that since there are interested parties, like Patricia 
Patrick-Joling, and others, they should have the opportunity to look at the draft before 
the meetings. Marshall reported that he has talked with Patricia Patrick-Joling, Loren 
Joling, and Lee Hardy, and they have reviewed the draft. It was noted that the term 
“owner” should be defined in the ordinance, and that will be a first big step toward 
developing the administrative rules. He added that another issue is to find a method for 
dealing with “hybrid organizations.” Busby suggested providing a list of definitions at the 
beginning of the ordinance. A brief discussion ensued regarding what it means to do 
business in Newport. 
 Patricia Patrick-Joling stated that Marshall has been cordial, and that she would 
appreciate being involved in any kind of meeting or communication with the attorney so 
the issues can really be defined. She suggested staying with language that aligns with 
state statutes as much as possible. She added that the ORS clearly defines “owner,” 



and would trump the city ordinance. She noted that she will save additional comments 
for the February meeting. Patrick-Joling stated that the other issue she wanted to 
discuss from the December 17 meeting is the memo that Voetberg sent to that other 
entity. Allen requested that Voetberg communicate with Patrick-Joling between now and 
February 18 to see if this matter can be addressed. 
 Allen asked about the scheduling of the joint meeting between the City Council and 
the Port. It was suggested that it occur on either February 20 or 21, and that staff share 
these dates with the Port. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Oath of Office of Fire Captains and Firefighters. Hawker administered the oath of 
office to the following fire personnel: Brian Haggerty, Doyle Helmricks, Tracy Cole, 
Richard Giles, and Tom Jackson. 
 
 Audit Finding No. 16: Monitoring Financial Activities by the City Council and Six 
Month Financial Review. Marshall presented a potential solution to the auditor’s Finding 
16 regarding the monitoring of financial activities by the governing body. He discussed 
the recommended review periods and the accounts to be reviewed. Allen noted that the 
underlying legal ability to spend does not necessarily pertain to budgets and must be 
met. 
 Marshall noted that Council should review the general fund, parks and recreation 
fund, and the airport fund on a quarterly basis. He added that Council receives a 
transient room tax report monthly. He noted that he will do a more thorough job of 
review throughout the year. Busby stated that this is progress, but that his expectations 
are a lot greater. Marshall noted that if the expectation is to review every expense and 
revenue on a monthly basis, it would require another half-time person. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 Continued Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2047, Creating a New Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.30, Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Plastic Carryout Bags by Retail 
Establishments. Roumagoux opened the continued public hearing on Ordinance No. 
2047, creating a new Municipal Code Chapter 4.30, prohibiting the distribution of single-
use plastic carryout bags by retail establishments. She noted that she had received two 
letters opposed to a ban on plastic bags; one from Darlene LaFollette, and one 
unsigned. She asked for public comment. 
  Matt Hawkyard, chair of the Newport Chapter of the Surfrider Foundation, and chair 
of the Plastic Bag Community Plan Task Force, reminded Council that this issue has 
been vetted through a long process. He added that the local Surfrider Foundation has 
provided hundreds of signatures opposed to plastic bags; there were six months of Task 
Force meetings where the Task Force listened to, and voted on, a range of different 
options; and the majority supported an ordinance similar to the one proposed this 
evening. He reported that there have been multiple public hearings, and he asked that 
as the issue moves forward; it is given a chance to succeed. Allen asked whether there 
is a difference between check-out and carryout bags. Hawkyard noted that these are 



bags that are provided at the point of sale and not in the meat or produce departments, 
or for items sold in plastic bags.  

It was noted that Allen and Saelens reviewed the proposed ordinance to see if any 
provisions needed clarification with the intent of making sure that this ordinance is a 
product the voters understand. Suggested changes include: the purpose statement end 
after the word “options” in the third line; that definitions be included for the terms 
“vendor” and “special event vendor;” that the term “violation” be defined; and the word 
“fine” in 4.30.050(C) be changed to “civil penalty;” and that the civil penalty be an 
amount not to exceed $100; and that the timeline for implementation be six months from 
the date the ordinance is adopted by voters; and the addition of an extension of the six 
month implementation due to reasonable hardship.  

Charlie Plybon, representing the Surfrider Foundation, noted that outreach in other 
communities had found that smaller stores have more of a hardship regarding turnover 
of bags. He stated that federal discrimination law prevents the ability to give away free 
bags to certain benefited folks, including SNAP recipients. He urged Council to spend 
time thinking about what an infraction event is and to define it as cleanly as possible.  

Peggy Sabanskas, owner of the antique mall which is a smaller business, and a 
member of the Task Force noted that she only orders bags once a year, and that order 
lasts for a year. She added that it would take her a year to use the bags and research 
alternatives. It was suggested that a hardship exemption could apply, but that the 
exemptions be for no longer than a year in duration. 

Saelens addressed the issue of special event vendors noting that it sends the wrong 
message to only apply the ordinance to one aspect of the community.  

Alisha Kern stated that if the election is held May 21, it seems like a long time for 
implementation. It was noted that the implementation will be six months after the 
election if the ordinance is approved. 

Roumagoux closed the public hearing at 7:40 P.M. 
MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Beemer, to direct staff to prepare a 

resolution calling for an election on the adoption of Ordinance No. 2047, as changed per 
the direction of the City Council this evening, which would create a new Municipal Code 
Chapter 4.30 regarding single-use plastic carryout bags and stating an effective date; 
and adopting a ballot title and explanatory statement, and bring this resolution to Council 
for consideration at its meeting of February 19, 2013. The motion carried unanimously in 
a voice vote. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

 
 Consideration of Teevin Brothers Appeal of System Development Charge 
Assessment. Roumagoux reported that she had received a letter from the Oregon Coast 
Alliance (ORCA) and asked that the letter be entered into the record. Allen stated that 
he would like to know who ORCA represents. Tokos reported that he received a letter 
from Christy Peterson that does not speak specifically to the SDC issue. Tokos 
delivered the staff report and reviewed what SDC’s are and their categories. He noted 
that the funds are used for larger system wide projects. He added that state law is 
explicit in terms of how SDCs are developed and applied, and that a clear methodology 
is developed to ensure that SDCs are fair and based on clear criteria. He added that 
there was a comprehensive update to the methodology in 2007, which was developed 



through a public process with broad representation. He added that the methodology is 
referenced in the Municipal Code. The SDCs applied to this project are for streets, 
water, sewer, and stormwater. He reported that the streets, water, and sewer SDCs 
have been credited out. He noted that the city’s SDC credit system applies additional 
credits if there has been a use or structure on the property within the last 30 years, and 
that this property was used for a log exporting operation within the last 30 years. He 
added that Teevin Brothers will get full credit for transportation impacts. He stated that 
the city is not required to offer the credit, but chose to adopt credits; similarly with water 
and sewer. He noted that stormwater is different and is applied based on the amount of 
impervious surfaces. He stated that Teevin Brothers report that stormwater will be 
managed on site, and believe that because it will be managed on site, they should be 
able to pay a reduced fee and are requesting that it be reduced 50%. He noted that the 
issue before Council is a determination of whether the City Manager’s decision to 
assess Teevin Brothers a stormwater system development charge fee in the amount of 
$ .30 per square foot of new impervious area associated with their planned log exporting 
operation is in accordance with the city’s ordinance for collecting system development 
charges and state law. Tokos noted that SDCs are imposed on new development and 
are used to help pay for capital infrastructure improvements that all city residents and 
property owners benefit from. He added that the assessment is fair in terms of credit 
already taken by Teevin Brothers. He noted that the code is unclear in what triggers a 
decision. He stated that he has worked with Teevin Brothers, and believes the appeal is 
timely filed. He added that a reduction in the amount of impervious surface would cause 
a reduction in the SDCs. A discussion ensued regarding the City Attorney’s memo, and 
it was noted that the memo can be interpreted to apply the credits. Allen asked what the 
legal options are based on the City Attorney’s memo. Tokos noted that one would be to 
affirm the City Manager’s decision, and the other is to allow an optional credit in the 
methodology, but that a formula would have to be established for determining that 
credit.  
 Paul Langner, representing Teevin Brothers, and Ralph Dunham, from Stuntzner 
Engineering and Forestry, addressed Council. Langner stated that the issue is fairness, 
and questioned the scale of the SDC assessment. He reported that Teevin Brothers will 
be restoring a lost stormwater management function, and will not add one drop of new 
water to the city’s stormwater system; will reduce heavy run-off into bay; will be held to a 
higher level of stormwater management than the city; and will have to monitor, test and 
report on potential pollutants. He added that SDC assessments must be proportionate 
and relative to impacts, adding that Teevin Brothers believes that one half of the 
assessment would be an agreeable fee. Dunham noted that staff supports adopted rules 
and applies them across the board. He added that Teevin Brothers is trying to make this 
work for everyone in the best way possible. He stated that they are not connecting to the 
city storm system, and therefore not increasing flows into the city system, and they are 
reducing run-off from the site. He added that the premise is to deal with increased run-
off on impervious surface, and that the SDC’s are based on impervious surface area. He 
stated that Teevin Brothers do not need to pave the area, but paving provides 
cleanliness and containment, and to compensate for paving. Teevin Brothers is 
providing detention and retention facilities, and a bioswale, and since it is not impacting 
the bay or city system, believes it should qualify for an impervious surface credit. He 
added that the project will not increase traffic or flows into the storm system, but it will be 



paying for 15 acres for which they are trying to be environmentally sensitive. He noted 
that the forgiven SDC’s were for sewer, water, and transportation amounting to 
approximately $42,000. He stated that Teevin Brothers has also paid approximately 
$30,000 in building permit fees. He added that the SDCs could be reduced by installing 
gravel rather than asphalt. 
 Langner reported that Teevin Brothers plans to be here for many years and is a good 
fit for the community. He added that this operation will bring back business, and that the 
investment is in the millions of dollars. He stated that the business will create family 
wage jobs and that Teevin Brothers is philanthropic and involved in its communities. He 
added that the project does not fit neatly into the model. He stated that he believes it is 
right to pay some of the fees, but asked for consideration of the request of a reduction of 
fifty percent of the stormwater SDC assessment. 
 Dunham stated that if Council allows Teevin Brothers some relief from the SDCs, 
that it should be amending the rules to allow the same consideration for other entities. 
He added that what Teevin Brothers is asking for is a fifty percent reduction of the 
stormwater SDCs despite a zero impact and reducing runoff. 
 Allen noted that the City Attorney mentioned that the option for credit is available and 
discretionary, but if you go that route, you must justify what you are doing. He asked 
whether the suggestion to base the SDC assessment on half is an arbitrary number or 
whether there is an underlying factual basis. Dunham noted that the number is relatively 
arbitrary, adding that the impact per square foot of impervious surface is zero to the city 
system. He added that there are other impacts; traffic offsite and people traveling to and 
from the site; and that these numbers are difficult to assimilate. He noted that he looked 
at other stormwater fees and methodologies and believes that Teevin Brothers is being 
generous offering to pay half the assessed SDCs. 
 Allen asked what it would cost to gravel the site to eliminate the SDC charge. It was 
noted that gravel would cost approximately $200,000 and paving would cost 
approximately $2.1 million. A discussion ensued regarding the ongoing maintenance 
costs of gravel and asphalt. Allen noted that there are a lot of advantages to asphalt, 
and Dunham responded that environmental risk is the main advantage. Saelens asked 
why the payment of the assessed SDCs is such a big deal for such a small percentage 
of the overall investment. Langner stated that the issue is fairness, noting that they are 
used to offset the impact to city, and this project is not creating additional impacts. He 
added that Teevin Brothers has already spent a quarter million dollars on the project, 
and they want to be in Newport, but the overarching issue is fairness. He added that the 
city boxed itself in with the methodology. Dunham noted that the ordinance does not 
contain a provision for a reduction in flow. 
 Busby asked whether the city has any precedence and whether anyone else has 
constructed a self-contained drainage system. Tokos reported that this is the first appeal 
of SDCs under this methodology. He added that there are circumstances where 
stormwater is detained on other property but the SDCs were still paid. Tokos noted that 
Teevin Brothers are at the end of the system, and historically, the property has received 
runoff. He added that if the city starts exempting out properties, it will start to chip away 
at the city’s overall capital program. 
 Allen asked whether the system Teevin Brothers is creating will have little impact on 
the city system. Tokos noted that he did not look at it that way, but added that Teevin 
Brothers are doing a lot to manage stormwater on their property, but that the project is 



having impacts above and beyond what is going into the site. Allen noted that the credit 
being discussed is 5.83, and asked whether what Teevin Brothers has mentioned is 
consistent with this. Tokos noted that it is consistent, but the language is not perfect, 
and anything should be done in a thoughtful way, and relate to the calculation of 
stormwater fees generally. Allen asked whether the ordinance and methodology should 
be refined, and Tokos responded that they should be, specifically as they relate to 
stormwater. Busby noted that a reason to reduce the fees is because they are not 
discharging into the city system. Beemer agreed with Busby. Allen noted that the issue 
was whether that was a legally sufficient way to proceed. 
 Yale Fogarty stated that he believes the city needs to review this process and 
ordinance because it lacks flexibility and discourages economic development. He added 
that Teevin Brothers will be leasing the property that it will use for the water filtration 
system. He stated that Teevin Brothers deserves the credit. 
 Peggy Sabanskas stated that she served sixteen years on the City Council and 
worked on SDCs for five years. She suggested exercising caution before setting a 
precedent by adjusting the SDCs. She added that the fees need to be built into projects. 
She added that Teevin Brothers has the right to appeal, but that the City Council has to 
look at best interest of Newport. 
 Mike Peterson spoke in opposition to Council giving Teevin Brothers an additional 
stormwater SDC credit. He submitted a letter for the records.  
 Jackie Trahan and Larry Johnson commented from the audience. 
 Rob Halverson stated that he understands the system is already in place to establish 
the fee, but that this is a unique situation where the city is dealing with a company 
applying for a reduction based on putting zero back into the city system. He noted that 
what triggered this was the permit process. He suggested establishing a maximum of 
50% reduction based on zero impact into the system determined by a sliding scale. 
 Allen asked Tokos whether, from a timing standpoint, Council is under a constraint to 
make a decision tonight or could the issue be continued to the next meeting. He added 
that tonight’s testimony has clarified issues and he now needs time to think about it, and 
to come up with a methodology. Beemer agreed with Allen. Tokos noted that Council’s 
scope of appeal is limited to a determination on whether the assessment is consistent 
with ordinance and state law. He added that if Council wishes to continue the issue and 
wants to see something more mathematical, it should advise Teevin Brothers to develop 
something other than an arbitrary 50% and continue the matter. Allen, Sawyer, and 
Busby concurred that a factual methodology should be developed. Voetberg suggested 
continuing the issue to a date no later than February 19. MOTION was made by Allen, 
seconded by Beemer, to continue this action item and matter to no later than the second 
regular City Council meeting in February which will be February 19. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Recommendation from the Destination Newport Committee to Utilize a Vinyl 
Wallscape for Advertising Newport in the Portland Market. Lorna Davis, executive 
director of the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce, and a member of the 
Destination Newport Committee, reported that the issue before Council is whether to 
approve a building wallscape at SW 4th and Oak Streets in Portland. She added that a 
proposal was submitted by OnDisplay Advertising, and reviewed and recommended by 
the Destination Newport Committee. MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by 



Sawyer, to approve the promotion of Newport by advertising on a billboard (building 
wallscape) located at SW 4th and Oak Streets in Portland, through a contract with 
OnDisplay Advertising. The billboard advertising will occur over two separate 12 week 
periods at a cost of $27,995 per twelve week period for a total cost of $55,990. The first 
advertising period will occur prior to June 30, 2013, and will be charged against the 
FY13 budget, and the second advertising period will occur after July 1, 2013, and will be 
charged against the FY14 budget. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Sawyer reported on a recent meeting of the Destination Newport Committee at which 
the above approved advertising opportunity, and other billboards, was discussed. He 
noted that Neal Henning, who was appointed to the DNC earlier this evening, will be a 
great asset to the committee. 
 Saelens reported that he has been actively involved in working on the plastic bag 
ordinance. He expressed appreciation for the Council Orientation session held earlier 
today. 
 Swanson also expressed appreciation for the Council Orientation and requested a 
list of department heads and telephone numbers. 
 Busby reported that he attended a recent City Center Newport Association meeting, 
and also presentations by state and US legislators. 
 Beemer reported that he has spent time on Safe Haven Hill watching the clearing, 
noting that the homeless camps were removed, and most of the rotten logs and brush 
were burned on site. 
 Allen reported that the Port Task Force met on January 9, and that short-term 
recommendations will be coming to Council. He noted that he and Beemer will 
exchange places as liaison and alternate to this Task Force. Allen noted that PMEC 
selected Newport for its site. He thanked Tokos for playing a prominent role in the 
presentation to the PMEC site selection team. Allen noted that he and Saelens had 
attended a recent Depoe Bay City Council meeting on separate issues. Allen added that 
there will be quite a few ocean policy meetings over the next few weeks, adding that 
LCDC will hold its final meeting to adopt TSP amendments for wave energy siting. He 
noted that this is the culmination of a five year process. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:07 P.M. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Sandra Roumagoux, Mayor 
 





January 16, 2013 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 

JOINT WORK SESSION 
NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

CENTRAL OREGON COAST FIRE AND RESCUE DISTRICT, 
NEWPORT RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, AND 

DEPOE BAY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

 
 
 

Councilor Members present: Roumagoux, Swanson, Sawyer, Busby, Saelens, and 
Beemer. Allen was excused.  
 
City Staff present: Jim Voetberg, Peggy Hawker, Phil Paige, Chris Rampley, Tracy Cole, 
Melanie Nelson, and David Marshall. 
 
Others present: 
 
Central Oregon Coast Fire and Rescue District – Derek Clawson, Chief, Dave Brooks, 
Board Member, Jerry Phillips, Board Member, Ray Woodruff – Board Member, Julie 
Becker, Tim Grady. 
 
Depoe Bay Fire Department: Joshua Williams, Chief, Barbara Leff, Board Member, Gary 
Nees, Board Member, Phil Taunton, Board Member Harry Riches, Kirk Medefesser, 
David Jensen, Phyllis Palmer. 
 
Newport Rural Fire Protection District: Ron Beck, Board Member, Yale Fogarty, Board 
member, Ron Benfield, Board Member, Peter Boris, Board Member, Shamus Gamache, 
Board Member, and Kent Gibson, Board Member. 
 
Also in attendance were: Tracy Shaw, Seal Rock Rural Fire Protection District; Don 
Baker, North Lincoln Fire District; David Morgan, News Lincoln County. 
 
Leff called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Roll 
was taken by each agency. 
 
Leff noted that this is a workshop and no vote will be taken. She noted that public 
comment will be limited to three minutes per speaker, and asked that everyone in 
attendance sign-in. 
 
Leff introduced Chief Phil Paige of the Newport Fire Department. Paige introduced 



Derek Clawson, Chief of the Central Oregon Coast Fire and Rescue District, and 
Joshua Williams, Chief of the Depoe Bay Fire Department. 
 
Paige made a PowerPoint presentation. The presentation included the history of 
collaboration efforts and the ESCI study; the reasons for collaboration; the challenges of 
cooperation; the options; the recommendations. He noted that an intergovernmental 
agreement is recommended to form a board with representatives from each participating 
agency. Paige noted that a collaboration committee was formed that developed goals 
and recommendations. The recommendations include the consolidation of 
administrative functions of the Newport Fire Department, Depoe Bay Fire Department, 
and the Central Oregon Coast Fire and Rescue Department. The governing board 
would be comprised of five members, one from each agency, and two from Newport. He 
added that a draft contract is under development and should be complete within the next 
week. He reviewed a sample budget for the first year; an organizational chart; 
responsibilities of shared positions; and suggested an implementation date of July 1 if it 
is decided to move forward. 
 
Paige commented, as Chief of the Newport Fire Department, that he was impressed 
with the process and input. He stated that Newport’s career and volunteer firefighters 
are not supportive of the idea, adding that there are details to work through. He added 
that he believes this plan is the best for citizens to provide better protection for the long-
term. 
 
Clawson stated that the Central Coast Fire and Rescue Department is 100% committed 
to the process, and ready to move forward as a group and meet the challenges together. 
 
Williams thanked the committee for its work adding that change is not easy. He stated 
that the responsibility is to keep up with change and manage it, and the 
recommendation is a blueprint for the process. 
 
David Jensen, Depoe Bay Fire Department, stated that he is in favor of consolidation. 
 
Chris Rampley, Newport Fire Department, read a statement noting that the career 
firefighters were unanimous in their opposition to this plan. He noted that the changes 
can be achieved through mutual aid agreements. 
 
Leff stated that the committee had done excellent work. She called for public comment. 
 
Kirk Medefesser, Depoe Bay Fire Department, stated that this department is 100% in 
favor of the proposal. 
 
Leff asked for questions from the governing bodies. 
 
Beemer asked about the number of volunteers in the Depoe Bay Fire Department; how 
many of them are local residents; and whether they are certified to enter burning 
buildings. It was noted that there are approximately 26 volunteers, and three are local 
residents and all three are certified to enter burning buildings. 



Busby asked why the districts that are not participating thought that the concept is not a 
good idea. Tracy Shaw, from the Seal Rock Fire District, stated that his district is 
monitoring the collaboration efforts and may participate at another time. 
 
Beemer noted that it is his understanding that the Newport volunteer firefighters voted 
on this issue last night. Paige reported that the vote was 9-2 to oppose the effort. He 
noted that the Assistant Chief supports the collaboration efforts. 
 
Don Baker, North Lincoln Fire District stated that there is no specific reason that this 
district is not participating, but noted that there are cultural differences in the three 
participating agencies. 
 
Swanson asked why the Depoe Bay Fire Department supports the collaboration. It was 
reported that collaboration would provide better and overlapping coverage, and potential 
sharing of equipment. 
 
Sawyer noted that the consolidated organization is similar to a three-legged stool with 
oversight by the consolidated board, the Newport City Manager, and the fire boards of 
the other districts. He asked what would happen if Paige did something that the others 
found egregious, and the City Manager suspended him for a week and the other 
members of the consolidate board believed he should be terminated. Woodruff stated 
that nothing will change but administrative duties. He reviewed the organization and how 
it would work, noting that overall, it would provide more services for the money. 
 
Leff noted that only Newport could terminate Paige in the scenario described by Sawyer. 
 
Leff stated that the goal of this effort is to decide on the number of fire districts in the 
county so that the state does not mandate consolidation. 
 
Saelens noted that fire districts are not the only agencies needing to review efficiencies 
and potential consolidations and collaborations. He suggested carefully weighing the 
present to what the future could bring. 
 
Yale Fogarty, board member of the Newport Rural Fire Protection District, stated that 
this district is the broken leg of the stool. He noted that the district has a contract with 
the city, and to participate in the consolidation would add liability that the district 
currently does not have. 
 
Paige noted that many directions were discussed, and that what makes sense now 
would allow for future flexibility. He noted that the new governing body would need 
errors and omissions insurance for its decision-makers. 
 
Fogarty stated that he was under the impression that there would be new lettering on 
the trucks, and that this might create/increase liability of participating 
departments/districts. Paige reported that the preliminary thought is that a sticker/decal 
of the new collaboration could be affixed to all equipment used by the consolidated 



group. Fogarty noted that the affixing of the decal on the equipment could lead to 
assuming a portion of the liability. A discussion ensued regarding liability. 
 
Fogarty noted that the consolidation may be good in the long-term, but that a start date 
of July 1 may be too ambitious. 
 
It was suggested that the City Council and fire district boards develop questions for the 
collaboration/consolidation committee, and hold another meeting in 60 – 90 days. 
 
Beck noted that his district is the gap if there is a consolidation, and that the geography 
is what brings this district to the table. He added that there are eleven fire authorities 
and nine fire chiefs in Lincoln County. It was suggested that a discussion of the services 
that will go away be held prior to determining whether only one chief is needed. 
 
Nees stated that he has 38 years in the fire service, and he worked for the Tualatin 
Valley Fire District which consolidated decades ago. He added that consolidation can be 
accomplished but that it needs to be done in a good and safe manner. He urged folks 
not to be hung up on the suggested July 1 start date. He stated that there are two errors 
in the ESCI study and they are that the Depoe Bay Fire Department and the Central 
Coast Fire and Rescue District are not in compression. He added that Newport is 
closest to compression and that parts of South Beach are in compression. 
 
Paige stated that the July 1 start date is an artificial date and was chosen due to the 
fiscal year. 
 
It was again suggested that each group develop questions and reconvene to discuss 
answers. It was noted that the agencies will not stop working together regardless. 
 
Beck addressed the letter from Speer Hoyt regarding there being no conflict of interest 
for representing four of the involved agencies. 
 
At the conclusion of the meeting, it was reiterated that questions should be developed 
by each agency and that another meeting occur to discuss those questions and 
answers. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 P.M. 


























































































































































	AGENDA-2-4-13
	CC Workforce Housing - worksession 2-4-13
	Council Goals 2012-2013
	Minutes-WorkSession-1-11-13
	Minutes-Regular Mtg-1-22-13
	Minutes-Joint Meeting with Fire Districts-1-24-13
	City Managers Report-2-4-13
	Staff Report-Port of Newport Vehicle Pedestrian Safety Plan Task Force
	Staff Report-Authorize Sale-Substandard-Undeveloped Property-Portion-NW Gladys Street
	Staff Report-IGA with State of Oregon-Surplus Property
	Staff Report-De-annexation-Portion-Wolf Tree Property

